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NEW USO OPENS ON POST 

by SGT Damian J. M. Smith  

The USO Center at Fort Indiantown Gap held its opening ceremony October 

13, 2016 at Building 13-190.  A performance by the USO Show Troupe made 

for an entertaining post-ribbon cutting celebration. The USO Center at Fort 

Indiantown Gap plans to host a variety of events in the future, and is open to 

service members and their families. (U.S. Army National Guard photos by 

SGT Shane Smith/released) 

 For over seven decades the USO has served the needs of 

our active duty, National Guard and Reserve military personnel 

and their families.  The basic mission of the USO is to enhance 

the quality of life of United States Armed Forces personnel and 

their families.  In short, the USO is the bridge between the      

civilian population and our service members.  In times of war and 

peace the USO has delivered its special brand of support,      

comfort, morale and recreational services.     

 On October 13, 2016, the USO opened its 119th center 

at Fort Indiantown Gap, which is the largest National Guard 

training center in the country, training roughly 110,000 service 

members annually.     

 The center at Fort Indiantown Gap is part of the      

Pennsylvania and Southern New Jersey (Liberty USO) which 

operates five centers.  They are Fort Indiantown Gap; Southamp-

ton Armory; Horsham Air Guard Station; Join Base McGuire-Dix

-Lakehurst; and at the Philadelphia International Airport.  With 

the opening of the USO Center at Fort Indiantown Gap, the    

Liberty USO will be able to serve military families in central 

Pennsylvania 365 days a year.  The Center will service as a place 

of respite and relaxation for our training service members, while 

also acting as a 

home base for 

the entire       

Military Family 

to  receive the 

USOôs  inten-

tional brand of 

family resiliency    

programming.   
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Programs Offered: 

 *United Through Reading 

 *Rucksacks to Backpacks 

 *Thanksgiving Day Baskets 

 *Adopt-a-Family Holiday Program 

 *Liberty Cares Helping Hand 

 *Financial Literacy Programs 

 *Military Transition Workshops 

Recreational Offerings: 

 *Internet Caf® 

 *Free Wifi 

 *A Full Theater 

 *Fully Functioning Kitchen 

 *Pool Table 

 *Fooseball Table 

 *Darts 

 *Game Day Events 

 

ASSOCIATION MAKE 

DONATION TO MUSEUM  
by  

SGT Damian J. M. Smith   
 

 The 28th Infantry Division Association was happy to 

present a donation to the PNGMM for the work and        

preservation of Pennsylvania National Guard artifacts.  Mr. 

John Byerly, Sr., Vice President of the 28th ID Association  

presented a $500 donation on November 19, 2016.  Accepting 

the donation was Mr. Charles B. Oellig, Museum Director. 



30th MUSEUM  

ANNIVERSARY 
by Mr. Charles B. Oellig 

 Itôs hard to believe that it has been thirty years since the 

dedication and ribbon cutting ceremony of the Pennsylvania   

National Guard Military Museum.      

 In a National Guard Bureau (NGB) document dated the 

16th of July 2013 by Mr. Steven L. Stearns, former NGB        

Historian Field Program curator, it indicated that on July 13, 

1976, almost four years  before another request was made for a 

ñLetter of Supportò for Pennsylvania, the first, to begin collecting 

historical items for historical display purposes and the formation 

of an eventual museum.  It was not until March 1984, that the late 

Major General Frank H. Smoker, Jr., our founder, took the     

historical items and formed these into a single collection as    

documented at National Guard Bureau.  This led to the  museum 

being  officially dedicated at Fort Indiantown Gap on the 18th of  

December 1986.  Here is the original press release by then Adju-

tant General Richard M. Scott.   

 Fort Indiantown Gap (December 18, 1986) - - State 

Adjutant General, Maj. Gen. Richard M. Scott today dedicated 

the Pennsylvania National Guard Museum, containing        

uniforms, rifles, photographs, and historic military artifacts 

that date back to the Civil War.    

 ñThis museum,ò stated General Scott, ñwill become a 

vital part of our Pennsylvania National Guard heritage here at 

Fort Indiantown Gap.  ñFuture generations will visit here and 

gain an understanding of what our role has been in this       

nation's history.ò      

 Development of the museum began a year ago with the 

restoration of the World War II barracks at Wiley and Service 

roads.  Restoration was done by the 876th Engineer Battalion, 

201st Civil Engineering Flight and the State Maintenance    

Division.        

 Items on exhibit came from many different sources, 

donations from veterans or their families, loans from other  

museums, items found in storage here at Fort Indiantown Gap, 

gifts from collectors and an occasional purchase.  

 ñOne of the ultimate goals of the museum will be to 

show a Pennsylvania National Guard soldierôs life as he passed 

through the Gap on the way to or from battlefield operations 

during World War II and the Korean War,ò General Scott said.

 A portion of one of the WWII barracks has been     

retained just as it looked in 1941, complete with bunk,          

footlocker, and other GI issued equipment.   

 On hand for the dedication ceremony were soldiers 

dressed in uniforms of the era of the Civil War, Spanish-

American War, World Wars I and II and the battle dress of the 

current era.       

 With the continued support of our wonderful board of 

directors, our dedicated volunteers and our museum membership, 

we look forward to many more years of service to our soldiers 

and interested civilians in the preservation of our history. 
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Pennsylvaniaõs Adjutant General, Major General Scott (left) and 

Brigadier General McCrone (right) cut the ribbon opening up the  

museum.  Photo courtesy of PNGMM.  

Major General Frank H. Smoker, Jr., founder of the museum, at the 

dedication ceremony.  Photo courtesy of PNGMM.  

Reenactors at the dedication.  Photo courtesy of  PNGMM.  



THREE CIVIL WAR        

VETERANS REBURIED 
by SGT Damian J. M. Smith 

 
 On Wednesday, November 16, 2016, three African-

American Civil War Veterans received the recognition they    

deserve through a memorial service at 11 a.m. in Penn Township, 

Cumberland County, Pennsylvania.  A burial took place at the 

Indiantown Gap National Cemetery at 1 p.m.  

 Colonel John Driscoll, 54th Regimental Commander  

and Mr. Joe Zellner, Company A reenactor represented the           

Massachusetts National Guard during the service. The           

Massachusetts National Guard also sent a Military Funeral    

Honors team of seven service members to take part and render 

honors in the burial service.   

 Years ago, these three soldiers were buried near 

Newville.  The area of the graves was known as the Irishtown 

Gap settlement which was an African American community in 

the 1880s.  The three graves were located in what was known 

once as the Williamson Cemetery.  The property was then sold 

and became part of the Lowell and Virginia Hassinger property. 

In 2009, Boy Scout Troop 185 began to reclaim the area of the 

overgrown trees, shrubs, as part of Beau Lloydsô Eagle Scout 

Project.  During this clean up, the scouts located a single grave 

marker placed by the Grand Army of the Republic (GAR) which 

was the fraternal organization composed of Union veterans from 

the Civil War.  With this find of a stone marker, specialized 

equipment was brought in to  locate the grave of the soldier.  To 

their surprise there was not one grave but three   separate graves, 

all of which were missing their headstones.   

 But that is where our story actually begins.  It was Mr. 

Tim Knepp Sr., who ultimately suggested having the soldiers 

honored.  Penn Township Officials believed these graves should 

be relocated to a national cemetery where their service to our     

country is more easily recognized, honored, and not forgotten.  

  Together with Chris Hoffman, owner of Carlisleôs   

Hoffman Funeral Home and Crematory and Marcus McKnight, 

an attorney with Irwin and McKnight, P.C., Penn Township   

Officials such as Mr. Gary Martin, chairman and Mr. Ken 

Sheaffer coordinated the exhumation of the graves. Hoffman  

donated three caskets and arranged for a memorial service in 

Penn Township and re-interment at Indiantown Gap National    

Cemetery.        

 So who were these men?  When the initial story broke, 

several days before the burial we knew that Corporal William 

Anderson served with the 54th Massachusetts Infantry, whose 

regimental story was featured in the Academy Award winning 

major motion film ñGLORY.ò  Private Greenberry Stanton 

served with the 5th Massachusetts Cavalry, rank and military unit 

of John Nelson was unknown. 

 The 1935 Report for Veteransô Grave Registration    

Record from Cumberland  County, all three men were buried in 

the Williamson Cemetery, but there were no reports of when they 

died or how.  The Pennsylvania 1890 Veterans Schedules did not 

list any of the soldiers.  Those that had a widow would have their 

wifeôs name listed and the regiment stricken.  As we would later 

find out that two of the men died prior to the 1890 documents. 

 Two years after the outbreak of the American Civil War 

the Northôs manpower began to dwindle.  With a large number of 

deaths at battles like Fredericksburg and Antietam, the North was 

in need of more troops to be able to strangle the Confederate  

Army into submission and ultimate surrender.  The Union      

abolitionist movement put pressure on the federal government to 

allow African-Americans to fight and Mr. Frederick Douglas was 

at the forefront of that battle. 

 By October 1862, the arming of African-Americans was 

fully adopted as a military measure and then on January 1, 1863,   

President Lincoln issued the Emancipation Proclamation.  Prior 

to that in September 1862, General Benjamin F. ñthe Beastò   

Butler began organizing the Louisiana Native Guard from free 

negroes.  General Rufus B. Saxton in the Department of the 

South formed the 1st South Carolina from contrabands in October 

of the same year.  By the summer of 1862, Colonel James      

Williams had recruited and formed the 1st Kansas Colored    

Regiment.  Next was the 54th Massachusetts Regiment.  In   

Massachusetts, the state formed the 54th Infantry Regiment   

composed of 1,007 black soldiers led by white officers.  It was 

organized at Readville, MA and on May 13, 1863 it was mustered 

into service.  After a few short days of training it paraded in   

Boston and left on the Steamer ñDe Molayò for Hilton Head, 

South Carolina on  May 28 and arrived June 3rd, where it was 

attached to the 10th Army Corps, Department of the South.  

Many claim that this was the first black unit in the Civil War, 

however,  it was not.  There were others   that saw military  
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